AGREEMENT

between

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 25

International Brotherhood of Teamsters

and

CITY OF BOSTON

(Steam Firemen, Power Plant Engineers)

For the Period

July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023

Contents

AGREEMENT:	2,
ARTICLE I (1) EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT:	2
ARTICLE II (2) NONDISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION	3
ARTICLE III (3) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF UNION DUES	3
ARTICLE IV (4) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF AGENCY SERVICE FEE	4
ARTICLE V (5) MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE VI (6) DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	4
ARTICLE VII (7) GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	5
ARTICLE VIII (8) NO-STRIKE CLAUSE	7
ARTICLE IX (9) STABILITY OF AGREEMENT	8
ARTICLE X (10) HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	8
ARTICLE XI (11) TEMPORARY SERVICE IN A LOWER OR HIGHER POSITION	9
ARTICLE XII (12) HOLIDAYS	11
ARTICLE XIII (13) VACATION LEAVE	12
ARTICLE XIV (14) SICK LEAVE	14
ARTICLE XV (15) OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE	16
ARTICLE XVI (16) SAFETY AND HEALTH	19
ARTICLE XVII (17) MISCELLANEOUS	19
ARTICLE XVIII (18) PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL	22
ARTICLE XIX (19) COMPENSATION	23
ARTICLE XIXA (19A) DENTAL/VISION	26
ARTICLE XX (20) DRUG TESTING POLICY	26
ARTICLE XXI (21). DURATION OF AGREEMENT	30
SIGNTURE PAGE	31
APPENDIX I	33
PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL FORM	34

AGREEMENT:

THIS AGREEMENT made under Chapter 150E of the General Laws, by and between the City of Boston, hereinafter called "the City" or "the Municipal Employer", acting by and through its Mayor, or its Office of Labor Relations and International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 25, hereinafter called "the Union". The parties agree to act at all times in such a manner as to insure proper dignity and respect for all City employees and for the City residents they serve.

WITNESSETH:

ARTICLE I (1) EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT:

Section 1. The Municipal Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative, for the purpose of collective bargaining relative to wages, hours and other conditions of employment, of all employees employed in the service of the City in the following positions classified in Schedule B constituting a part of the COMPENSATION PLAN EFFECTIVE MARCH 6, 1963 FOR CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF CITY OF BOSTON, hereinafter called "the 1963 Plan":

- *Steam Fireman
- *Steam Fireman(Hospital Department)
- *Steam Fireman (Incinerator)
- *Third-Class Stationary Engineer
- *Third-Class Stationary Engineer(Hospital Department)
- *Third-Class Stationary Engineer(New City Hall)
- *Second-Class Stationary Engineer
- *Second-Class Stationary Engineer(Hospital Department)
- *Second-Class Stationary Engineer (New City Hall)
- *Chief Power Plant Engineer
- *Chief Power Plant Engineer, City Hall New)
- *Assistant Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Department of Health and Hospitals

*Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Department of Health and Hospitals

*Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Long Island Chronic Disease Hospital

*Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Mattapan Chronic Disease Hospital

*Maintenance Mechanic

All Maintenance Mechanics will possess a valid, job-related state license. And excluding all other employees.

Section 2. All employees who are required to operate, maintain, and/or repair equipment in the municipal employer's buildings, such as boilers, or auxiliary heating equipment shall be a licensed members of the bargaining unit.

The buildings with generators, evaporators, air conditioners, absorbers and compressors shall be required to have employees with stationary engineer licenses or other licensed member of the bargaining unit available on all shifts.

Approved H.V.A.C. training and expertise may also be required where new technology requires new or increased skills from employees.

ARTICLE II (2) NONDISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

Section 1. The City and the Union agree not to discriminate against any employee because of race, color, religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, military status, sex, sexual preference, age, physical or mental handicap, parental status, marital status, union activity and membership or non-membership in the Union.

Section 2. The City and the Union recognize that a policy of non-discrimination by itself, however, is not sufficient to erase the effects of past employment practices which, regardless of their intent, may prevent the equitable representation in the workforce of minorities, women and disabled employees. Toward that end, the Union recognizes the City of Boston Executive Order on Affirmative Action which calls for the aggressive recruitment, hiring and promotion of minorities, women and disabled persons. In addition, the Union recognizes the City's right to consider affirmative action concerns when evaluating qualified applicants for hiring, training, or promotion.

ARTICLE III (3) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF UNION DUES

In accordance with the provisions of Section 17A, Chapter 180 of the General Laws (Chapter 740 of the Acts of 1950), accepted by the City Council of the City of Boston on January 15, 1951, and approved by its Mayor on January 17, 1951, union dues shall be deducted weekly from the salary of each employee who executes and remits to the Municipal Employer a form of authorization for payroll deduction of union dues. Remittance of the aggregate amount of dues deducted shall be made to the Union's Treasurer within twenty-five (25) working days after the month in which dues are deducted.

ARTICLE IV (4) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF AGENCY SERVICE FEE

- Section 1. Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 150E, Section 12, to assured that employees covered by this Agreement shall be adequately represented by the Union in bargaining collectively on questions of wages, hours and other conditions of employment, the Collector-Treasurer of the City shall deduct from each payment of salary made to each such employee during the life of this Collective Bargaining Agreement and pay over to the Union, the exclusive bargaining agent of such employee, as an agency service fee, which amount is proportionately commensurate with the cost of collective bargaining and contract administration. The Union certifies that this collective bargaining Agreement is formally executed pursuant to a vote of a majority of all employees in the bargaining unit.
- Section 2. The Union agrees to indemnify the Municipal Employer for damages or other financial loss which the Municipal Employer may be required to pay or suffer by an administrative agency or court of competent jurisdiction as a result of the Municipal Employer's compliance with Section 1 of this Article.

ARTICLE V (5) MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- Section 1. The Municipal Employer shall not be deemed to be limited in any way by this Agreement in the performance of the regular and customary functions of municipal management, and reserves and retains all powers, authority and prerogatives including, without limitation, the exclusive right of the appointing authority to issue reasonable rules and regulations governing the conduct of his Department, provided that such rules and regulations are not inconsistent with the express provisions of this Agreement.
- Section 2. The Municipal Employer reserves and retains the right to contract out work or subcontract out work. Pursuant to the exercise of such right, no employee shall be laid off if there is available work in the same position or in a similar position which he is qualified to fill and is eligible to fill under Civil Service law and rules.

ARTICLE VI (6) DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section 1. No employee either Civil Service of non-Civil Service, who has completed six (6) months of actual work shall be disciplined, suspended, demoted, or discharged except for just cause. Any period or periods during the first six (6) months of service for which an employee is not paid (including as little as one (1) day) shall extend the probationary period by that amount of time. For the purpose of treating employees equitably who are working at less than a full-time capacity, the probationary period for such employees shall be considered complete after the

employee has actually worked 910 hours (35 hours per week for 26 weeks). Any employee's probationary period may be extended at the discretion of the City up to a maximum of three (3) months of actual work. The employee will be notified in writing of the length and reason for the extension.

When an employee who is eligible to appeal his grievance under Civil Service or otherwise under the preceding sentence elects to proceed under the grievance and arbitration procedure with the Union's approval, such dispute may be processed under the contract grievance and arbitration procedure, in which case the contract grievance and arbitration procedure shall be the exclusive procedure for resolving such grievance in accordance with General Laws, Chapter 105E, Section 8.

In the event of group discipline arising out of the same incident, the dispute shall not be processed under the contract grievance and arbitration procedure unless all the employees subject to the group discipline so elect to proceed thereunder.

- Section 2. The probationary period shall be the first six months of continuous active service of an employee in the bargaining unit. Any employee provisionally promoted, provisionally appointed, or placed in a new position in the bargaining unit, shall serve a separate six (6) month evaluation period during which time the Appointing Authority, at his discretion, may return him to his same or similar position.
- Section 3. The City agrees to apply the concept of progressive discipline in case of discipline and discharge except in the most serious cases.
- Section 4. An employee whose office or position is neither classified nor deemed to be classified under Civil Service law and rules who has completed his six-month probationary period, shall not be discharged except for just cause.

ARTICLE VII (7) GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- Section 1. Only matters involving the question whether the Municipal Employer is complying with the express provisions of this Agreement shall constitute grievances under this Article.
- Section 2. Grievances shall be processed as follows:
 - <u>Step 1.</u> The Union representative, with or without the aggrieved employee, shall present the grievance orally to the employee's immediate superior outside of the bargaining unit, who shall attempt to adjust the grievance informally.
 - <u>Step 2.</u> If the grievance is not settled at Step #1, it shall be presented in writing to the appointing authority or his delegate in the department in which the aggrieved employee serves. The appointing authority or his delegate shall schedule a hearing

on the grievance within three (3) working days after he receives it and shall issue his written answer thereto within three (3) working days after the hearing.

Step 3. If the grievance is not resolved at Step #2 within six (6)working days, the grievance may be submitted to the City's Office of Labor Relations which shall schedule a hearing within ten (10) working days after it receives the grievance. Conducting the hearing shall be one or more of the staff of the Office of Labor Relations. In addition, the Municipal Employer's committee to hear grievances may include such other persons as the Office of Labor Relations may from time to time designate.

Step 4. If the grievance is not resolved at Step #3 within fifteen (15) working days, the Union, and only the Union, may submit the grievance to arbitration. Such submission to arbitration must be made within thirty (30) days after the expiration of the 15 working days referred to herein. The arbitrator shall be selected by the mutual agreement of the parties. If the parties fail to agree on a selection in the first instance, the American Arbitration Association shall be requested to provide a panel of arbitrators from which a selection shall be made. Expenses for the arbitrator's services shall be shared equally by the parties. The parties agree in principle to use the expedited arbitration procedure of the American Arbitration Association whenever feasible.

Section 3. Written submission of grievances at Step #2 shall be in not less than triplicate, on forms to be agreed upon jointly, and shall be signed by the representative of the Union filing the grievance. If a grievance is adjusted at any step of the grievance procedure, the adjustment shall be noted on the grievance form and shall be signed by the Municipal Employer's representative and the Union representative reaching the adjustment. At any step of the grievance procedure where no adjustment is reached, the grievance form shall bear a notation that the grievance is unsettled, shall be signed by the Municipal Employer's representative and the Union representative then handling the grievance, and shall be referred to the next step in the grievance procedure as provided herein.

Section 4. A grievance shall be deemed waived if:

- (a) not presented in writing at Step #2 within ten (10) working days of the occurrence, or failure of occurrence, whichever may be the case, of the incident upon which the grievance is based;
- (b) not presented at Step #3 within ten (10) days after presentation of Step #2;
- (c) not submitted to arbitration within forty-five (45) days after presentation at Step #3. (See Step #4, Section 2 of this Article.) "Submission to arbitration" means a letter to American Arbitration Association, with a copy to the Office of Labor Relations.

Section 5. A written list of Union stewards and other representatives in each department shall be furnished to the appointing authority immediately after their designation, and the Union shall notify the appointing authority of any changes.

Subject to the operating needs of each department, determined by the appointing authority, leave of absence without loss of pay will be permitted for reasonable time for the processing of grievances by one employee's representative on each shift.

- **Section 6.** Any incident which occurred or failed to occur prior to the effective date of this Agreement shall not be the subject of any grievance hereunder.
- Section 7. The arbitrator hereunder shall be without power to alter, amend, add to, or detract from the language of this Agreement. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. The arbitrator shall submit in writing his decision within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of testimony and argument, or as soon as practicable thereafter, unless extended by mutual consent. The arbitrator shall have no power to recommend any right or relief for any period of time prior to the effective date of this Agreement.
- Section 8. Any matter which is subject to the jurisdiction of the Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination ("MCAD"), the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"), the Civil Service Commission or any Retirement Board established by law shall not be a subject of grievance or arbitration hereunder. Complaints by Civil Service employees that they are being required by the appointing authority to perform work outside their job descriptions shall be referred to the Supervisor of Personnel prior to making complaint to the Director of Civil Service.

ARTICLE VIII (8) NO-STRIKE CLAUSE

- Section I. No employee covered by this Agreement shall engage in, induce or encourage any strike, work stoppage, slow down, or withholding of service. The Union agrees that neither it nor any of its officers or agents will call, institute, authorize, participate in, sanction or ratify any such strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services.
- Section 2. Should any employee or group of employees covered by this agreement engage in any strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services, the Union shall forthwith disavow any such strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services and shall refuse to recognize any picket line established in connection therewith, and failure to comply will result in waiver of the just cause provision of this Agreement. Furthermore, at the request of the Municipal Employer, the Union shall take all reasonable means to induce such employee or group of employees to terminate the strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services and to return to work forthwith.

Section 3. In consideration of the performance by the Union of its obligations under Section 1 and 2 of this Article, there shall be no liability on the part of the Union nor of its officers or agents for any damages resulting from the unauthorized breach of the agreements contained in this Article by individual members of the Union.

ARTICLE IX (9) STABILITY OF AGREEMENT

- Section I. No agreement, understanding, alteration or variation of the Agreements' terms or provisions herein contained shall bind the parties hereto unless made and executed in writing by the City's Office of Labor Relations and the Union.
- Section 2. The failure of the Municipal Employer or the Union to insist, in any one or more incidents, upon performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered as a waiver or relinquishment of the right of the Municipal Employer or of the Union to future performance of any such term or condition, and the obligations of the Union and the Municipal Employer to such future performance shall continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE X (10) HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

- **Section I.** The regular workweek shall consist of five (5) eight-hour days between any Wednesday and the following Tuesday, inclusive.
- Section 2. All authorized overtime service in excess of the regular workday or the regular workweek shall be compensated on a time-and-one-half basis. However, work performed on the seventh day shall be compensated at double time.
- Section 3. An employee shall not be denied overtime compensation for authorized overtime service, as specified in Section 2 of this Article, by reason of authorized absence during the week in which such overtime service is performed. However, in the event of unauthorized absence in the week in which overtime service is performed, or in the event of absence without pay by reason of disciplinary action, such employee shall be compensated for such overtime service on a straight-time basis only.
- Section 4. Employees shall not accept compensatory time off in lieu of monetary compensation for overtime work.
- Section 5. Overtime work shall be distributed as equitably as possible. A list of all eligible employees shall be posted in a conspicuous place, and kept up-to-date, by the Municipal Employer. For the purpose of a regular rotation of overtime opportunities, but for such purpose only, overtime work refused shall be considered as overtime actually worked.

- Section 6. In the event an employee reports to his regular place of work at his regularly scheduled time and is sent home for lack of work, he shall be entitled to a day's pay.
- Section 7. All employees' work schedules shall provide for a 15-minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) shift. The rest period shall be scheduled at the middle of each one-half (1/2) shift whenever this is feasible. The present practice with respect to wash-up time shall continue in force for the duration of this Agreement.
- Section 8. If an employee who has left his place of employment after having completed work on his regular shift is called back to work, he shall be paid for each hour worked on a time-and-one-half basis, and in no event shall he receive less than four (4) hours' pay on a straight-time basis.
- Section 9. All employees shall be scheduled to work on regular work shifts, and each work shift shall have a regular starting time and quitting time. Work schedules shall be posted on all department bulletin boards at all times. Employees shall be given reasonable notice of any change in their work schedule.
- Section 10. The Municipal Employer agrees to give the Union reasonable notice of any proposed change in scheduled work shifts and an opportunity to discuss the proposed change. In the event of failure to agree on this proposed change, the Municipal Employer shall have the right to institute the change and the Union shall have the right to take the matter up as a grievance under the grievance procedure.
- **Section 11.** All overtime shall be paid no later than the next payroll cycle following the week in which such overtime was earned.
- Section 12. The City agrees not to transfer employees for disciplinary reasons except in accordance with Article VI.

ARTICLE XI (11) TEMPORARY SERVICE IN A LOWER OR HIGHER POSITION

- Section 1. While an employee is performing, pursuant to assignment, the duties of a position classified in a grade lower than the grade of the position in which he performs regular service, he shall be compensated at the rate of pay for the grade of the position in which he performs regular service.
- Section 2. An employee who is performing, pursuant to assignment, temporary service in a position classified in a grade higher than the grade of the position in which he performs regular service, other than for the purpose of filling in for an employee on vacation, shall, commencing with the sixth consecutive day of actual service in such higher position, be compensated for such service at the rate to which he would have been entitled had he been promoted to such position.

Any remedy based on a grievance filed under this Section shall be limited in effect to a period not to exceed five (5) days prior to the date of the filing of the grievance in writing.

- Section 3. When there is an existing Civil Service list for a higher position to be filled on a temporary basis, the selection of an employee to perform temporary service in such higher position shall be made in accordance with Civil Service rules.
- Section 4. When there is no existing Civil Service list for the position to be filled temporarily, the selection of an employee to perform service in such higher position shall be made on the basis of qualifications and ability; and where qualifications and ability are substantially equal, seniority as defined under Civil Service law and rules shall be the determining factor. The appointing Authority's decision shall not be made arbitrarily, capriciously or unreasonably. In the event that the senior applicant(s) for the position is(are) not selected, the appointing authority shall, upon request by the Union, submit reasons in writing why said employee(s) was(were) not selected to fill the position. Any dispute hereunder shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure.
- Section 5. In the event of a permanent vacancy, the appointing authority will first attempt to fill the vacancy by lateral transfers based on seniority and then follow the procedure set forth below.
 - (a) If the vacancy cannot be filled by a permanent transfer, then the appointing authority may fill the vacancy with a provisional promotion. The Personnel Division shall either post the vacancy for ten (10) consecutive working days in the department and employing units in which bargaining unit personnel are employed and send the notice, receipt requested, to the Local of the bargaining unit which is located at 544 Main Street, Boston, MA 02129-1113.

Promotional examination shall be made known in the same manner as provisional promotions.

- (b) On the posting the appointing authority shall specify the job classifications eligible to fill the position. (His decision as to eligible classifications of employees shall be subject to Civil Service law and rules and shall not be a subject of grievance or arbitration.) The poster shall also specify the duties of the position and the location of the position.
- (c) The selection of an employee for provisional promotion shall be made from among the eligible bidders in the manner specified in Section 4 of this Article. Notice of selection shall be posted on the original poster at the time the selection is made.
- Section 6. A complaint by an employee who is junior to the employee selected under Section 4 or Section 5 of this Article shall not be a subject of grievance or arbitration.

ARTICLE XII (12) HOLIDAYS

Section 1. The following days shall be considered holidays for the purposes enumerated below:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

President's Day Patriots' Day

Memorial Day

Juneteenth

Independence Day

Labor Day

Columbus Day

Veterans' Day

Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

If the Holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday. If the Holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.

Section 2. If an employee is not required to work on any of the holidays listed in Section 1 of this Article which falls on his regular workday, he shall nevertheless be paid his regular weekly compensation for the workweek in which the holiday falls. If in the course of his regular service an employee is required to work on any of the holidays listed in Section 1 of this Article, or if the holiday falls during an employee's vacation or on his regular day off (such as Saturday), shall receive, in addition to his regular compensation, either an additional day off or an additional day's pay on a straight-time basis.

Section 3. Notwithstanding any provision of this agreement to the contrary, the City reserves and retains the right to determine whether an employee who works on a holiday shall receive additional time off or additional pay.

Section 4. A Department Head/Supervisor may request that an employee, who utilized sick leave on the day before or the day after a holiday, provide a signed statement from a physician, nurse practitioner or other health care provider confirming the necessity for such absence prior to the granting of Holiday pay. Should such an employee refuse or otherwise fail to provide such a statement, that employee shall not be paid for the Holiday on which he/she called in sick on the day before or after.

Section 5. "Floating holidays" In addition to the holidays enumerated in Section I of this Article, on each January 1, full-time employees who were City of Boston employees on January 1, 2013 will be eligible for two (2) "floating holidays" that must be taken by December 31 at a time or times requested by the employee and approved by his/her immediate supervisor outside the bargaining unit. Employees who were not City of Boston employees on January 1, 2013, or who separated from service after January 1, 2013 shall not receive "floating holidays."

"Floating holidays" shall be subject to the same notice and approval requirements as outlined in Article XII ("Vacation Leave") of this Agreement. "Floating holidays" not used by December 31st of the year in which it was received shall not carry over into the following year and may not be redeemed for monetary compensation at any time. In the event an employee follows the appropriate notice requirements and is denied the use of his/her "floating holiday(s)" and as a result is unable to use the "floating holiday(s)" by the end of the calendar year, that employee may carry over his/her "floating holiday(s)" to the next calendar year. Any "floating holiday(s)" carried over must be used by December 31st of the following year.

ARTICLE XIII (13) VACATION LEAVE

Section 1. The "vacation eligibility year" shall be the twelve (12) months preceding January 1.

Section 2. Vacation leave shall be calculated as follows:

- (A) An employee who starts 6 months' work before July 1 shall receive one week vacation during his/her first calendar year of employment and only upon completion of six months of service. Continuing thereafter, vacation shall be calculated pursuant to the schedule in Section 2(C) below.
- (B) An employee who starts work after July I shall not receive any vacation during his/her first calendar year of employment. Thereafter and upon completion of six months service, vacation leave shall be calculated pursuant to the schedule in Section 2(C) below.
- (C) Effective January 1, 1998, for all employees not in their first calendar year of employment, vacation leave shall be calculated pursuant to the following schedule:

Length of Service Completed	Vacation Entitlement in Next
as of January 1	Calendar Year
Less than six (6) months	One (1) week
More than six (6) months, but less than four (4) years	Two (2) weeks
More than four (4) years, but less than nine (9) years	Three (3) weeks
More than nine (9) years, but less than fourteen (14) years	Four (4) weeks
More than fourteen (14) years but less than thirty (30) years	
More than thirty (30) years	Six (6) weeks

Section 3. For the purpose of determining vacation leave under Section 2C of this Article, service with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the City of Boston, or the County of Suffolk shall be included in computing length of service. However, the number of years computed and

- credited shall be capped at nine (9) years. All members of the bargaining unit who are on the payroll as of the effective date of this Agreement, which shall be complete upon execution by the Mayor[October 4, 2004], shall be exempt from the terms of this provision.¹
- Section 4. The appointing authority may grant during any calendar year a one-week vacation to any employee covered by this Agreement who for any reason is not entitled to vacation leave under Section 2 of this Article; provided that on January 1 of such year such employee has been continuously in active service for at least five months.
- **Section 5.** An employee may secure the benefits of Sections 2 of this Article only during active service; and no rights under said Sections shall accrue to an employee in the event of the termination of his employment before the vacation leave therein authorized has been actually taken, except as specifically provided in Sections 6 and 7 of this Article.

Any employee on an authorized leave of absence shall accrue or not accrue vacation time in accordance with the City's Family & Medical Leave Policy, or Military Leave Policy, whichever is applicable.

- Section 6. If during the vacation eligibility year (prior to January 1) the employment of an employee who has actually worked for the Municipal Employer for thirty (30) weeks in the aggregate since January 1 of the preceding year and who is entitled to vacation leave under Section 2 of this Article is terminated for a reason other than death, retirement, or discharge for cause, such employee shall be paid an amount in lieu of vacation leave prorated in the proportion that the number of months of service since January 1 of the preceding year (including the month in which employment is terminated) bears to twelve.
- Section 7. If the employment of any employee entitled to vacation leave under Section 2 of this Article, is terminated by death or retirement without the employee having been granted such vacation, such employee, or in the case of his death, the employee's estate, or as provided in Section IIII of Chapter 41 of the General Laws, the employee's surviving spouse or next of kin shall be paid an amount in lieu of such vacation; provided, that no monetary or other allowance has already been made therefor, and provided, further, if the employment is terminated by death or retirement before January 1, that the employee has actually worked for the Municipal Employer for thirty (30) weeks in the aggregate since December 31 of the preceding year.
- Section 8. Immediately prior to departure on vacation leave, an employee will be permitted to be advanced vacation pay allowance up to his maximum vacation leave entitlement under this Article, provided that when the employee is departing on a vacation leave period which is less than his full vacation leave entitlement, the advancement shall not exceed the vacation pay allowance for such vacation leave period.

¹ The current members are: James Kearns, Dennis Sholes, Peter Millerick, Mark Mulkern, Charles P. Leahy, Michael Keogh, John Hickey, and John A. Gleeson.

Section 9. Vacation leave shall be taken at such time as, in the opinion of the appointing authority, will cause the least interference with the regular work of his Department. Subject to the preceding sentence, vacation leave selection shall be determined by seniority. Vacation leave may be taken from January 1st to December 31st subject to the operating needs of the Department and secondly at the discretion of the appointing authority.

Section 10. Vacation leave may not be taken on the following holidays: Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and New Year's Day. Watch firemen and engineers may not take vacation leave during these days if it would require any of the spare firemen or engineers to fill in for them.

ARTICLE XIV (14) SICK LEAVE

Section 1. Every employee covered by this Agreement who has completed six (6) months of continuous service for the Municipal Employer shall, subject to Section 2 of this Article, be granted sick leave, without loss of pay, for absence caused by illness (which term, as here used, shall not be deemed to include pregnancy) or by injury or exposure to contagious disease or by the serious illness or death of a member of the employee's immediate family.

Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of 1 1/4 dates for each month of actual service, not to exceed fifteen (15) working days in any calendar year. Employees shall not be credited with fifteen (15) days' sick leave as of January I of any year, in advance of such year having been worked. Sick leave not used in the year in which it accrues, together with any accumulated sick leave standing to the employee's credit on the effective date of this Agreement and not used in the current year, may be accumulated for use in a subsequent year. Sick leave not used prior to the termination of an employee's service shall lapse, and the employee shall not be entitled to any compensation in lieu thereof.

- Section 2. A day shift employee calling in sick must call in one (1) hour before his watch is to begin. Afternoon and night watch must call in two (2) hours prior to start of shift. Employee returning to work must call in the day prior to returning to work. When he is reporting back over the weekend, he must notify his employer by noontime Fri lay. If the employer assigns a relief man because he was not notified the man was returning to work, he does not have to pay the sick man for that shift.
- Section 3. The appointing authority may require an employee who seeks to return to work after a leave of absence for sickness or other cause to be examined by the Medical Advisor to the Workmen's Compensation Agent, prior to the employee's reinstatement to active service. No employee shall suffer loss of pay for lapse of time between the date he reports for work after a sick leave of absence and the date of examination by the said Medical Advisor if: (a) the employee reports for work with a doctor's certificate certifying that the employee is able to work

in the position in which he was performing regular service, and (b) said Medical Advisor approves such certificate.

Section 4. An employee on leave because of an occupational disability may take such of the sick leave allowance to which he is entitled under this Article as, when added to the amount of any disability (Workmen's) compensation, will result in the payment to him of his full salary for any particular workweek.

The Municipal Employer agrees to support legislation authorizing it to pay such amount of compensation as, when added to the amount of any disability (Workmen's) compensation, will result in payment of a full week's salary to an employee who is on leave because he was injured in the line of duty as the result of violence by a patient or person in lawful custody.

Section 5. Up to five (5) days' sick leave credit will be restored to an employee's accumulated sick leave when such employee has used sick leave allowance between date of injury on the job and date disability (Workmen's) compensation is awarded, except that such sick leave shall be offset proportionately by a disability benefit that 1st awarded retroactively to date disability was incurred.

The City agrees to support legislation to broaden the statutory coverage provided for injuries incurred in the line of duty.

Section 6. An annual report of sick leave shall be made available upon request.

Section 7. An employee who has used fewer than five (5) sick days in the twelve-month period ending December 31 of any year in which this Agreement is in effect may elect to redeem sick days in a lump-sum cash payment in accordance with the following schedule:

Sick Days Used	Cash Redemption
0	5 days' pay
1	4 days' pay
2	3 day: pay
3	2 days' pay
	1 day: pay
5	0 day: ' pay

The <u>per diem</u> rate will be the employee's rate on December 31 as specified in the Pay Schedule, Article XVIII.

During January the City will notify each qualifying employee of his redemption options. An employee may elect to redeem all or part of his entitlement in full days. Unredeemed sick leave days will be accumulated in the normal manner.

Section 8. Employees may use four (4) sick days as personal days per year. Employees who elect to use all or part of these days shall lose the equivalent from his/her annual redemption of sick leave.

Section 9. As of the effective date of the retirement of an employee from City service, the City shall redeem a percentage of the employee's accrued but unused sick leave.

For employees hired on or before the date of ratification of this Agreement [2017-2020], The City shall redeem no more than thirty (30%)of the total accumulative sick leave at a rate of pay which is the average of the employee's rate of pay for the last three (3) years of service but in no event shall an employee receive more than fifteen thousand (\$15,000) of the total accumulated sick leave.

For employees after the date of ratification of this Agreement, the City shall redeem no more than thirty percent (30%) of the total accumulative sick leave at a rate of pay which is the average of the employee's rate of pay for the last three (3) years of service, but in no event shall an employee receive more than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) of the total accumulative sick leave.

It is understood that the cap on sick leave redemption at retirement does not apply and does not include accrued but unused vacation time as of the date of retirement.

ARTICLE XV (15) OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Section 1. Subject to the operating needs of each department, determined by the appointing authority, leave of absence without loss of pay will be permitted for the following reasons:

- (a) Attendance by an employee who is a veteran as defined in Section 21, Chapter 31, of the General Laws as a pallbearer, escort, bugler, or member of a firing squad or color detail, at the funeral or memorial services of a veteran, as so defined, or of any person who dies under other than dishonorable circumstances while serving in the armed services of the United States in time of war or insurrection:
- (b) Attendance by an employee who is a veteran as defined in Section 21, Chapter 31, of the General Laws as a delegate or alternate to state or national conventions of certain veterans 1 organizations as designated from time to time, during the life of this Agreement, by the Mayor;
- (c) Attendance by employees, who are delegates or alternates, at the annual convention of the Massachusetts State Labor Council;
- (d) Prophylactic inoculation required by the Municipal Employer;
- (e) Red Cross blood donations, if made on the premises of the department in which an employee requesting such leave serves;

- (f) Promotional examinations conducted under Civil Service law and rules for promotion to any position in the service of the Municipal Employer;
- (g) Medical examinations for retirement purposes;
- (h) Attendance at hearings in Workmen's Compensation cases as the injured person or as a witness. Any witness fees received by such injured person or witness shall be remitted to the Municipal Employer;
- (i) Voting time up to a maximum of two (2) hours for voting in a state, municipal or other election, provided that the hour of opening and closing the polls in the city or town in which an employee is registered to vote would preclude him from voting outside regular working hours, taking into consideration travel time from the polls to his regular place of employment, or vice-versa;
- (j) Reasonable time for the processing of grievances by one employee's representative on each shift. The Union shall provide and keep up-dated a list of such representatives:
- (k) Attendance at educational programs required or authorized by the Municipal Employer; and
- (l) Emergency medical treatment for employees injured during performance of assigned work. Employees who have returned to regular duty or to light duty after having been injured during performance of assigned work will be permitted reasonable time off without loss of pay for the purpose of attending follow-up physician's appointments which cannot be scheduled during off-duty hours.

Section 2. Military Leave Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted Military Leave consistent with the City of Boston's Military Leave Policy.

Section 3. Jury Duty

Every employee covered by this Agreement who is required to serve on a jury shall be granted leave of absence, without loss of pay. Upon presentation of satisfactory evidence relating to jury service and payment therefor, the Municipal Employer will pay such employee such sum of money as, when added to the amount received by such employee as compensation for jury service, shall result in the payment to him for his full salary for any particular workweek.

Section 4. Bereavement Leave. In the event of the death of a spouse, father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, child, or member of the immediate family (for a period of six months or more) in the immediate family of an employee with six or more months of continuous active service and who is in active service at the time of such death, such employee shall be entitled to receive up to five (5) working days' leave without loss of pay for the purpose of attending funeral services or arranging for burial.

In the event of the death of a grandparent or grandchild, an employee with six (6) months or more of continuous active service and who is in active service at the time of such death, shall be entitled to receive three (3) working days' without loss of pay for the purpose of attending funeral services or arranging burial.

In the event of the death of a niece, nephew, aunt or uncle, an employee with six (6) months or more of continuous active service and who is in active service at the time of such death, shall be entitled to receive one (1) working days' without loss of pay for the purpose of attending funeral services or arranging burial.

If an employee entitled to leave without loss of pay under this section requires additional leave for such purposes, or in the event of a death in the immediate family of an employee not entitled to leave without loss of pay under this Section, leave for such purposes shall be deducted from sick leave allowance, if any.

Section 5. Parental Leave Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted parental leave consistent with the City of Boston's Family & Medical Leave Policy.

Section 6. If a skeleton force is declared by the Mayor, then all employees within the City will be treated equally (i.e. if some employees within a given Department get time off, all the other employees within the bargaining unit in that Department will be given an equal amount of time off within thirty (30) days thereafter).

Section 7. One week without pay shall be granted an employee who wishes to attend to the introduction of a new family member. Such unpaid leave may be extended to a second week at the discretion of the Appointing Authority. Such leave shall not adversely affect seniority or vacation credits.

Section 6. Notification Requirements for Employees Receiving Worker's Compensation Benefits.

Any employee injured at work must immediately, or as soon as physically capable, notify in writing on City-approved forms both the Worker's Compensation service and his/her department head of the date, time, location and nature of the injury. A Department's personnel officer or designee shall endeavor to contact the employee at his or her last known address (using the letter attached as Appendix I) upon receipt of notice from the City's Workers Compensation Division that the employee's benefits have been terminated. However, the employee shall bear the responsibility for notifying both the worker's compensation service and the employee's department head of all developments in the employee's worker's compensation case. In particular, the employee must notify the department head when the employee appeals any rulings of the City's Worker's Compensation Division or of [he Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Industrial Accidents, or related entities.

Also, the employee must immediately notify his/her department head in writing when he/she has been cleared for return to work regarding his/her intent to return to work or request applicable leave. Any employee who fails to notify his/her department head of his/her ability to return to work after being medically cleared to do so through the Worker's Compensation process shall be subject to discipline or discharge. Any employee who fails to notify his/her department head accordingly and within fourteen (14) days of receiving medical clearance to

return to work may be considered to have voluntarily separated from service. Such separation shall only be a subject of the grievance and arbitration article hereunder through Step 3 and shall not be subject to arbitration.

All employees returning to work from work related injuries may be ordered to submit to a medical examination pursuant to Article XIV, section 3.

ARTICLE XVI (16) SAFETY AND HEALTH

Both parties to this Agreement shall cooperate in the enforcement of safety rules and regulations. Complaints with respect to unsafe or unhealthy working conditions shall be brought immediately to the attention of the employee's superior and shall be a subject of grievance hereunder.

The Municipal Employer and the Union shall establish a joint safety committee consisting of representatives of each party in each department for the purpose of promoting sound safety practices and rules.

ARTICLE XVII (17) MISCELLANEOUS

- Section 1. Bulletin board space will be provided for Union announcements. Such announcements shall not contain anything political, denunciatory, or inflammatory; nor anything derogatory of the Municipal Employer or any of its officers or employees. Any Union-authorized violations of this Section shall entitle the Municipal Employer to disregard its obligations under this Section.
- Section 2. (a) No material originating from the Municipal employer derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in the personnel files unless the employee has had an opportunity to read the material. The employee shall acknowledge that he has read such material by affixing his signature on the actual copy to be filed. Such signature does not necessarily indicate agreement with its contents, but merely signifies that the employee has read the material to be filed.
- (b) The employee shall have the right to answer any material filed and his answer shall be attached to the file copy.
- (c) Any employee shall have the right, on request at reasonable times, to examine all material in his personnel file which is neither confidential nor privileged under law, in the presence of an officer in the Personnel Office. A copy of any such material shall be furnished to the employee at his request.

- Section 3. Should any provision of this Agreement be held unlawful by a court of administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in force for the duration of the Agreement.
- Section 4. As soon as practicable after the execution of this contract, the City agrees to take steps to provide each employee with two (2) work uniforms.
- Section 5. The City agrees to compensate employees in an amount not to exceed one thousand hundred dollars (\$1,000.00) in any year for courses and seminars provided that they are authorized, required and job related. The employees must notify the City in advance of taking such course and receive approval in writing.
- **Section 6.** The City will provide two sets of foul weather gear at each worksite.
- Section 7. Residency Requirement

 Effective upon ratification and approvals, members of the bargaining unit must be residents of the City of Boston in accordance with the City of Boston's Residency Ordinance (Ord. 1976, c. 9 as amended), except that after ten (10) consecutive years of full-time service from the date of hire with the City of Boston, bargaining unit members will be exempted from the Residency Ordinance
- Section 8. The City shall conduct, and the Union cooperate in a comprehensive job evaluation and reclassification study having as one of its purposes an analysis of the issues surrounding the concept of pay equity. Any change in a bargaining unit employee's salary as a result of said classification study shall be the subject of future negotiations between the parties.
- Section 9. The Municipal Employer agrees to extend the letter of intent agreed to in the Memorandum signed in 1984 regarding the closing of City facilities or transfer of County facilities, except that the name "International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 25" shall be inserted in lieu of "National Conference of Firemen and Oilers, Local 3, AFL-CIO" and except that the phrase "Union members" shall replace the phrase "Firemen and Engineers in paragraph number 1.
- Section 10. The City shall make a good faith effort to provide each employee with a summer and winter jacket.
- **Section 11. Seniority and Layoff.** Seniority shall be defined as length of total continuous service with the City or the County.

The order of layoff shall be determined by an employee's seniority date in the order of least seniority first. Provisional employees shall be laid off prior to any permanent employees, according to their longevity date or date of hire.

A recall list shall be established for permanent and provisional employees who request recall. The list shall be maintained for 2 years. An employee must indicate in writing to the Appointing Authority his desire to be maintained on a recall list.

- Section 12. The Chief Power Plant Engineer may stand alone on the day watch. The parties will continue the practice with respect to the Chief Engineer that all other members of the bargaining unit have the right of first refusal for overtime with exceptions for supervisory overtime and extended shift overtime.
- **Section 13.** The City agrees to reimburse employees for the fees for any license which is a requirement for the employee's position.
- **Section 13-B.** Effective the first pay period of calendar year 2008, all members of the bargaining unit shall be required to receive his or her compensation via direct deposit, if such arrangement has not already been made by the employer to that date.
- Section 14. Life Insurance. In accordance with Massachusetts General Law, the City provides five thousand dollars (\$5,000) basic life insurance for each employee. The City pays fifty percent (50%) of the premium for this benefit. Effective January 1, 2008, the City will provide an additional five thousand dollars (\$5,000) of Life insurance. The employer will pay fifty percent (50%) of the premium for this additional life insurance. The employee will pay the remainder of the premium. This additional life insurance product shall be discontinued when the enrollee ceases to be a member of the bargaining unit.
- Section 15. Health Insurance Opt-Out. Effective July 1, 2007, bargaining unit members declining the City's health insurance benefit shall be eligible for the City's opt-out insurance benefit pursuant to the City's health insurance policy. Those bargaining unit members shall receive fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) annually for opting-out of an individual plan or twenty-five hundred dollars (\$2,500) annually for opting-out of a family plan under the above-mentioned policy.

Eligibility.

To participate employees must have been enrolled or be currently enrolled in medical coverage through the City of Boston for a year and have dropped their coverage;

Employees are eligible for the payment if they have coverage under another plan. Other plans include:

- Employee spouse's/partner's plan (as long as he or she is covered by someone other than
 the City of Boston, Boston Water and Sewer Commission or the Boston Public Health
 Commission);
- b. A private plan;

- c. A plan offered through a second employer (if you have another job that provides health care benefits); or
- d. A retiree health plan from an employer other than one of the City of Boston groups.

Section 16. Attendance. Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be required to comply with the City of Boston Attendance Policy beginning January 1, 2013.

Section 17. Light Duty. Employees who are receiving benefits under the City's workers' compensation program shall be required to comply with the City of Boston's Light Duty policy.

ARTICLE XVIII (18) PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

- **Section 1.** A performance appraisal system shall be established by the County/City and/or its various departments. The purpose of this system shall be to appraise the performance of all employees covered by this agreement.
- Section 2. All appraisals shall be in writing and shall be included in the employees official personnel file. The evaluations will be performed by the Appointing Authority or his/her designee. The parties also recognize that, where practicable, evaluations should be performed by those persons who supervise the employee that is being evaluated.
- **Section 3.** The evaluating criteria used in the performance appraisal system shall be as objective and job related as is practicable. Each employee shall be evaluated at least once a year but not more than twice in one year.
- Section 4. The employee and the person responsible for conducting the evaluation shall sign the performance appraisal form. If the employee disagrees with the results of the evaluation, he/she may file a written rebuttal statement. This statement shall be affixed to the form.
- Section 5. No performance appraisal format may be used by an appointing authority without the approval of the Office of Personnel Management of the City of Boston.
- Section 6. An employee may file a grievance based on a performance appraisal when discipline is issued as a result of a performance appraisal. A poor evaluation shall not be considered discipline.

ARTICLE XIX (19) COMPENSATION Section 1:

Effective FPP October 2020 ® 2% base wage increase.

Effective FPP October 2021 ® 1.5% base wage increase.

Effective FPP October 2022 ® 2% base wage increase.

Effective the FPP in June 2018, a new Step 7 will be created, which will be 2% greater than the then existing Step 6. (To advance a step an employee must have been in the prior step for a full year)

Retroactive pay shall be limited to employees of the City on the date that the Union ratifies this Memorandum of Agreement. Employees who separated from employment for any reason prior to the date the Union ratifies this Memorandum of Agreement shall not be eligible for retroactive pay.

Pandemic-work stipend – On a one-time only basis, bargaining unit members employed on the date this MOA is funded by the City Council shall receive a one-time lump sum payment of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00), minus standard deductions.

Section IA. Effective July 1, 1987 the following pay scale shall be implemented:

Steam Fireman SF-10A

Third Class Engineer SF12A

Second Class Engineer SF-13A

Chief Power Plant Engineer

Section 1B. Bi-Weekly Pay The City may, upon 90 days' notice to employees, change from paying employees weekly to paying employees bi-weekly. Employees will receive electronic pay stubs in lieu of paper stubs, but will have the option to elect to receive paper copy.

Section 2. Night Shift Work. Effective July 1, 1985, whenever in the course of his regular service, an employee works a night shift, he shall be paid a night shift differential of forty dollars (\$40.00) per week in addition to his regular pay. The term "night shift" shall mean a regular work shift four (4) or more hours of which occur between 7:00 P.M. on one day and 8:00 A.M. on the next succeeding day, except that in the Parks and Recreation Department is shall mean a regular work shift four (4) or more hours of which occur between 6:00 P.m. on one day and 8:00 A.M. on the next succeeding day.

Section 3. The parties acknowledge that the so-called twenty (20) year rule initially established by the 1963 Classification and Compensation Plan only applies to promotions within the bargaining unit. It does not apply to Employees who reach their twenty (20) years in their current position.

Section 4. Mileage. Mileage allowance shall be twelve cents (12¢) per mile.

Section 5. Compensation Grade Appeals. The City and Union shall create a joint Compensation Grade Appeal Committee (Committee) comprised of up to two (2) individuals designated by the Union and up to two (2) individuals designated by the City The Committee shall meet periodically in order to review a claim by the Union that certain position(s) should receive a compensation upgrade The Committee may ensure that a job audit is completed as part of its review.

The Union agrees that any position for which an appeal is made was properly graded on the effective date of this Agreement. In considering an appeal, the Committee shall not examine changes in the job content in the position for which the appeal is claimed that occurred prior to the effective date of this Agreement Rather, the review shall be restricted to a review on the issue of whether, after the effective date of this Agreement, there was a fundamental and substantial change in the job content of such position that could have the effect of changing its compensation grade Further, the review shall not consider perceived changes in job duties related to new technology, state or federal mandates, and/or increases in the volume of work or duties

At the completion of its review, the Committee shall issue a non-binding recommendation to the City relative to the claim The Union has the right to file and advance a grievance filed over the outcome of such recommendation under and in conformance with Article VII of this Agreement except that in no event shall such grievance be subject to arbitration without the written agreement of the City of Boston's Office of Labor Relations

In the event that the Committee unanimously recommends an upgrade, writter agreement from the Office of Labor Relations shall not be withheld. Such arbitration shall be a de novo proceeding base I on the standards set forth in paragraph two (2) of this section In such arbitration, the Committee's recommendation and deliberations are not admissible. Furthermore, the arbitrator shall draw no inferences or base any findings on the fact that the dispute is before him/her.

The Union agrees that any position for which an appeal is made was properly graded on the effective date of this Agreement. In any arbitration case arising from any such appeal, the arbitrator shall not examine changes in job content which occurred prior to the effective date of this Agreement in the position for which the appeal is claimed, but shall restrict himself to the sole issue whether, after the effective date of this Agreement, there was a change in the job content of such position which should have the effect of changing its compensation grade.

- **Section 6.** No moneys shall be paid under this Agreement unless and until the funds necessary to implement this Agreement have been appropriated.
- Section 7. Effective January 1, 1973, an employee with not less than one year of service who is not a permanent employee shall be advanced to the step next higher in his pay grade, and thereafter shall automatically advance to the next higher step, if any, unless he fails a Civil Service examination or fails to take a scheduled Civil Service examination without reasonable cause. An employee who on January 1, 1973 has less than one year of service or who is hired thereafter shall receive step-rates under this provision except that his anniversary date shall be date of hire.
- **Section 8.** No employee shall lose pay upon promotion (e.g. when promoted from a position to which he had been provisionally promoted).
- Section 9. This Section is Intentionally Left Blank.
- **Section 10.** Effective July 1, 1998 and thereafter, there shall be a longevity program for all employees in the unit, as follows:

Employees with (10) ten years of service shall receive \$150.00. On June 30, 1987, employees will receive \$200.00 per year. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$215.00 per year.

Employees with (15) fifteen years shall receive \$200.00. On June 30, 1987, they shall receive \$250.00 per year. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$265.00 per year.

Employees with (20) twenty years shall receive \$250.00. On June 30, 1987, they shall receive \$300.00. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$315.00 per year.

Employees with (25) twenty-five years shall receive \$300.00. On June 30, 1987, they shall receive \$350.00 per year. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$365.00 per year.

Payment of the longevity amount shall be due on the employee's anniversary date.

- **Section 11.** Compensation for work performed by employees on Christmas day only, shall be at a double t me rate.
- Section 12. The City agrees to compensate the employee who fills in for the Chief Power Plant Engineer during his vacation at the rate of the vacationing Chief Power Plant Engineer.
- Section 13. Weekend Differential. Effective the first pay period after ratification of this agreement, increase the weekend differential from \$0.60 for each for each hour worked between 11:00 P.M. Friday and 7:00A.M. Monday to one dollar and twenty-five \$1.25

Section 14. Tool and/or Boot Allowance Each employee of the bargaining unit will receive a maximum Tool and/or Boot Allowance of three hundred (\$300.00) per calendar year

for the reimbursement of purchases of boots and/or tools, provided that the employee furnishes receipts to the employer. Under no circumstances shall any employee receive more than a total of three hundred (\$300.00) per calendar year for the purchase of tools and/or boots

A Eligibility

- 1. Employees on Workers' Compensation, alterative work assignment, light duty, or unpaid time for more than six months of the preceding twelve months are not eligible for the tool and/or boot allowance;
- 2 An employee who terminates on or before January 1st is not eligible for the tool and/or boot allowance

<u>B Boots</u> The employer will only reimburse employees for the purchase of boots (protective footwear) that protect the employee from the danger of foot injuries due to falling or rolling objects, piercing the sole, or other hazards of the job.

<u>C Tools.</u> Only tools that are used on the work site on a daily basis shall be eligible for reimbursement. Those employees who do not maintain an adequate current inventory of tools to perform his/her duties shall not be granted reimbursement for tool purchases. The determination will be made by his/her supervisor outside the bargaining unit

ARTICLE XIXA (19A) DENTAL/VISION

The City will continue the current dental/optical insurance through the Massachusetts Public Employees Fund available to the members of the bargaining unit, paid in full by the employer. No dispute or claim relative to any and all aspects of the dental/vision plan, including but not necessarily limited to claims related to the Fund's administration of such plan, the level of benefits provided by such plan, and/or any modification(s) to such plan, is subject to Article VII (Grievance Procedure) of the Collective Bargaining Agreement

ARTICLE XX (20) DRUG TESTING POLICY

The City of Boston and Local 25 recognize that the illegal use of drugs, the abuse of prescription medications, and the abuse of alcohol by members of the Department pose serious threats to the public welfare as well as to the employees of the Department.

The goal of this rule is to detect and to prevent substance abuse whenever possible and to assist in the rehabilitation of employees rather than to terminate the employment of members who are abusing drugs and/or alcohol.

A. Standard for Testing

- I. The Department's Commissioner, or his/her designee, based upon reasonable suspicion may require that a union member submit to substance screening by urinalysis which shall be administered by a competent testing laboratory. This testing laboratory shall be a member of the National Institute for Drug Abuse.
- II. "Reasonable suspicion" is belief based on objective and articulable facts sufficient to lead a prudent member to suspect that an employee is using, is in possession of, or control of, or is under the influence of, drugs or alcohol while on duty.
- III. Circumstances which may constitute a basis for reasonable suspicion include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - Direct observation of drug/alcohol use while on duty;
 - Member found to be in possession of alcohol/drugs while on duty;
 - Spontaneous unusual, abnormal, erratic, or unacceptable behavior or behavior
 which otherwise indicates that the member is under the influence of an
 intoxicating substance (e.g.) the presence of bloodshot eyes, glassy eyes, slurred
 speech, lack of coordination or other indications of intoxication or substance
 abuse;
 - Documented pattern of unusual, erratic, or unacceptable behavior;
 - Extended or patterned sick leave use which indicates that the member is unable to work due to substance abuse;
 - An on-duty accident in which safety precautions were violated or careless acts were performed;
 - Reporting for work unfit for duty.

B. Prohibited Conduct

The following conduct related to the use of drugs and alcohol is prohibited. Any employee who engages in prohibited conduct will be disciplined, up to and including termination:

I. Prohibited Use of Alcohol

- i. Consumption, possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale or storage (including in a desk, a locker, a motor vehicle, or any other repository) of alcohol on City property, on City business, in City supplied vehicles, in vehicles being used for City purposes, or during work hours, or during any break is prohibited.
- ii. Further, the City of Boston prohibits employees who leave City property during work hours to consume alcohol if they will be returning to work, e.g., drinking during lunch is prohibited.

- iii. Any alcohol misuse that could affect the safe performance of an employee's duties is prohibited.
- iv. Specifically, an employee is prohibited from:
 - a. Having any detectable amounts of alcohol in his/her system during, just before, or just after performing their duties;
 - b. Having a blood alcohol concentration of .02 % or greater, upon reporting for work, before, during or just after performing his/her duties, is in violation of the City's policy and the employee will be subject to discipline up to and including termination.

II. Prohibited Use of Drugs

- i. All use of drugs is prohibited at any time. Having any detectable amount of drugs in an employee's system is a violation of the City's policy. The following conduct is prohibited:
 - a. Use, possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale or storage (including in a desk, a locker, a motor vehicle, or any other repository) of a controlled substance, illegally used drug or drug paraphernalia on City property, on City business, in City supplied vehicles, in vehicles being used for City purposes, or during working hours;
 - b. Failure to notify a supervisor of the legitimate use of a drug (i.e., prescription medication) that may adversely effect the employee's performance of his/her duties.
- III. Prohibited conduct related to drugs and alcohol is prohibited:

The following conduct related to drugs and alcohol is prohibited:

- i. Switching, adulterating, or committing any other misconduct pertaining to any breath, urine or blood sample;
- ii. Refusing to submit to an inspection when required under this Policy;
- iii. Refusing to submit to a new hire probationary, reasonable suspicion, or follow-up drug or alcohol test when required;
- iv. A refusal to submit to such test is treated as a positive test result.
- v. Disclosing to individuals, other than a need to know basis of information pertaining to alcohol and/or drug testing referrals, results of such testing or treatment referrals:
- vi. Failing to adhere to any of the requirements of a man latory referral to EAP.

C. Procedures for Testing

I. All Departmental members initiating testing action on the basis of reasonable suspicion will be required to detail in writing, the specific facts, symptoms, or

- observations which form the basis for their conclusion that reasonable suspicion existed to warrant testing of the member.
- II. The results of the test shall be provided by the Laboratory only to the Commissioner and/or his/her designee, who shall provide a copy of the results to the member.
- III. A member who fails to undergo a test as ordered, or who fails to provide a test sample as directed by the testing laboratory, will be subject to disciplinary action including possible termination.
- IV. A member may also be tested as part of a routine testing program instituted as a result of a prior drug or alcohol related disciplinary proceeding for a period of one (1) year.
- V. Members returning from suspension will be tested if such is required by the Commissioner.
- VI. Probationary employees will be subject to testing at any time during their probationary period. A confirmed positive test result will be grounds for termination, without recourse.

D. Consequences of a Positive Alcohol and/or Drug Test:

The following will result when an employee has a positive alcohol and/or drug test:

- I. Any probationary employee who has a positive alcohol and/or drug test will be terminated, without recourse;
- II. An employee with more than six (6) months of service who has a positive alcohol and/or drug test will be suspended for twenty (20) days without pay, and will be given a mandatory referral to EAP. If said employee fails to abide by the rules of the EAP or refuses to complete the EAP, he/she will be terminated; and
- III. An employee who has a second positive alcohol and/or drug test will be terminated from his/her position immediately.

E. Consequences of a Refusal to Submit to a Required Alcohol and/or Drug Test:

- I. Any refusal to a new hire probationary period test, a reasonable suspicion test, a random test, or a follow-up test, is considered a positive verified drug and/or alcohol test and the consequences of a positive test will apply; and
- II. Failure to provide an adequate sample for testing without a valid medical explanation, or engaging in conduct that clearly obstructs the testing, constitutes a refusal to submit to a test.

F. Employee Assistance Program

The City of Boston maintains a Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which is available twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. this Program is for the benefit of all members. Voluntary participation, which is participation because a member believes he/she may benefit by attending meetings of the EAP, is confidential and is at the option of the member.

G. Mandatory Participation

There may be occasions when the Commissioner and/or his/her designee, shall require that a member participate in the EAP, such as, for example, when a member has been ordered to participate due to a violation of the Rules and Regulations of the Department. In such circumstances, the requirements for mandatory participation in the EAP require that the employee strictly follow the plan as set out by the EAP Coordinator. The Program Coordinator will advise the Commissioner and/or his/her designee if the member's participation complies with the above. Discipline up to and including termination, for failure to abide by the agreement, will be preferred against a member.

ARTICLE XXI (21). DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 1. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall take effect on the date of execution and continue in full force and effect through July 1, 2020. Should a successor agreement not be executed by June 30, 2023, this agreement shall remain in full force and effect until a successor agreement is executed. On or after March 15, 1990, the Union or the Municipal Employer may notify the other of the terms and provisions it desires in a successor Agreement. The parties shall proceed forthwith to negotiate with respect thereto.

Notification under this Article shall be accomplished by the Union's delivering a copy of its proposals to the Office of Labor Relations, or vice-versa.

In witness hereof, the City of Boston and the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 25 have caused the Agreement to be signed executed and delivered on the 28 day of September, 2022.

CITY OF BOSTON

Michelle Wu,

Mayor

Alex Lawrence

Chief People Officer

Ashley Groffenberger

Chief Financial Officer

Renee Bushey,

Director, Labor Relations

Approved as to Form:

Adam Cederbaum, Esq.

Corporation Counsel

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS, LOCAL 25

1

Thomas G. Mari

President/Principal Officer

Joan Corey,

Vice President/Business Agent

2.23.2023

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

In consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the County of Suffolk and the International Brotherhood of Firemen and Oilers, Local 3, AFL-CIO, agree as follows:

- The Employer agrees that the practice of Firemen and Engineers operating and maintaining HVAC equipment shall continue for the duration of this Agreement.
- 2. In the event of the closing of any City or County facility with employees covered by this contract, the Employer shall make every effort to relieve displaced employees at another facility in a comparable position at a comparable salary. This provision shall not be interpreted to require the Employer to act in violation of G.L. c. 31 or any union contract. In the event of a closing, the Employer and the union shall negotiate bumping language for displaced employees, provided that such negotiations shall not delay the closing of any facility.

FOR THE CLTY	
Names B. Cox Acting Supervisor Labor Relations	Thomas Brassil Business Agent International Brotherhood of Firemen & Oilers, Local 3 APL-CIO
Date: 5/30/84	Date:

APPENDIX I

BY FIRST CLASS MAIL

DATE:

Employee's Name
Last Known Address

Re: Return to Work Order

Dear Name:

Since DATE, you have been absent from your position as a POSITION in the DEPARTMENT, under claim of an on-the-job injury. However, on DATE, you were notified that your worker's compensation benefits were being terminated as of DATE. Accordingly, you are hereby ordered to report to work no later than DATE.

This letter is being sent by the personnel division of the DEPARTMENT and is not related to any communications that you or your attorney may be engaged in with the City's Worker's Compensation Division. Therefore, if you do not return to work on DATE, then it is your responsibility to complete ALL of the following steps:

- Contact your Departmental Personnel Officer and discuss your status (i.e., whether you plan to appeal the termination of your workers comp. benefits, etc.) with him or her; AND
- Make a proper written request for a medical or other leave of absence; AND
- Produce sufficient documentation for your continued absence.

If you do not complete all of the above steps within fourteen (14) days after receiving this letter, then the Department may consider you to have voluntarily separated yourself from employment.

Again, if you do not notify your Department that you intend to appeal the termination of your worker's compensation benefits and you do not intend to request a medical Or other leave of absence, then you must report to work on DATE. Failure to do so shall constitute an unauthorized absence and shall be grounds for discipline, up to and including termination. Also, continued failure to report to work may increase the discipline that you may receive for your unauthorized leave.

Please contact me at (617) 635-XXXX should you have any further questions.

Sincerely,

DEPT. PERSONNEL OFFICER

cc: Union Representative Employee's Supervisor Personnel File

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL FORM

washing believes become the control of



CITY OF BOSTON NCTO PERFORMANCE REVIEW SYSTEM

SALFO TER UNORMY TOTAL	
Employer's Neme:	
Sob Titles	
Sypariment	
Statustor's Names	Dalet
low Long Under Your Supervisions	
eriod of Evaluation	
NET CONTRACTOR	

- The PRS Evaluation Form was discussed to reset for listocing pools:

 1) In provide an objective, consistent, and this system for measuring employee performance;

 2) to indicate employees of the quality of their work, to identify those seems precifing improvement, to and appealing objectives for sampleyees, and he provide employees an opportunity to discuss their cases:

 3) to arsist depositions and managems in evaluating their workforce, identifying employee potential, and establishing polarities to britishing and advantagem.

Instructions in Evaluates
The Ending Cuide will provide the basis on which all coupleyees will be reted. Back category and the minim mass; be objectively applied to add simpleyee to ascent whether as not the standards have been met. Follow these gradulates in evaluating the employees.

Integer each employee as the basis of work now being parameter.

Face a check in the box beside the planeau which hast describes the individual being evaluated.

Lise the Commonstraphanation are to explan your rating or to describe an amployee's strengths in the area:

If you have given the employees a sating of "does not ment exponentions" or "qualitally moves expositions" in any category, you must identify the areas for improvement in sufer for the employee to successfully next expectations.

Charity you mast identify the areas for improvement in sufer for the employees of successfully next expectations.

The the Daviderment define this section couling any areas to represent the interpretation of the continuous additional continuous and the successfully master than the continuous additional continuous and the successfully master than the continuous and the successfully master than the continuous and the successfully master than the continuous and the successfully master than a continuous and the successfully master than the the successfully successfully the successfully successfully the successfully success

- Use the Davelopment Action. Plan section to qualine now goals, training out development suggestions, additional aking, coaching you'll provide, possible menturing, ots.
 Allow conjugges sufficient tipes to provide comments to the evaluation if the employee without to do

1

Section 1: CORE PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES AND CRITERIA

Significately Above Expectations	Expensations	Successfully Macis Expectations	Partially Meets Expectations	Expectations	☐ Not Applicable
Demonstrators automotive technology required to perfere the jet, including enve technology release the jet, including enve technology release to proceedings in technology release an includent the complex technology technology technology technology technology technology white and technology white and populations	Has become experi in-requirements of the job, yes unitalizate work needs and always follows appropriate procedure	Despensurate knowledge and elills required to perfore the jub; and contamin, pintul plea-to percentises and can apply an work and properties and can apply an work and properties and can despectificant without the properties and can despectificant.	Needs to chush annu peritesianal, annu peritesianal, at obain tatedire, supervisory acciden approximate the constitution of th	Lacis knowledge to be able to perform the job; does are understand principles. A probabilisty applies knowledge only offer upualed explanation or with store ampenated explanation or with store ampenations.	

Communist Explanations or Does Not More Representants to selected, places then the areas for improvement

Significantly Above Expectations	Expediations	Secretarily Mosts Expectations	Directs Exponentions	Dose Not Meel Expectations	Applicable
Francos volunio of vont district of vont district of vont district of employment and a sheet of employment district occupied with the second control of employment district occupied of employment district occupied of employment district of employment of e	Froduces and arent links become volume of york steelers or completes should of disadilars, steeling, steel	Produces volume of work required by sing job and meets should say the produce of	Designations of collections of colle	Work in below exposed outpiet collec- cate to receive disabilities, does not work an accessing responsibilities sincellations by but lengty to do-some at a final	

Comments/Explanation: If Partially Meets Expectations or Does N. 1 Meet Expectations is selected please Westliff areas for Improvement

Significantly Above Expectations	Expectations	Mans Mans Expectations	Parially Macta Expectations	Does Not hite! Expectations	Applicable
Demonstrates instruction and control of the control	Work is paraistently accuminated the work may are the social name and most and accuminated the supervisor and accuminated the supervisor and accuminated the supervisor and accuminated the supervisor and accuminate th	Work is accurate and incompile, parely translation of fourthful consumer or fourthful class supply with the control consumer of the control co	Work is generally excepted stell thosough, but occasionally impounds or facing in discrengionals, adeds additional discollers or assistance than supervisor	Dushity of work is balon sequinal simulation sequinal simulation simulation; and there exploses a section is not sought to make an and sought to make an analysis of the sought to m	

Commental Explanation: If Partially Mean Experiation in Door Not know Experiences is selected, please identify mean for improvement

Abavo Expectations	Egggetations	Marcis Expressions	Portially Kingts Expectations	Dons Not Meet Expectations	Applicable
Sectas Sch Biller en additional miller projects en responsibilitées; delibers through us problem through us problem through us problem through expressed; golfichigates problems or opposituation proble	Some these perker over his roll and a cold than a landar, perpetus or a constraint of the cold dennel work perificient work perification will incide about the cold dennel work perification follows through one delignor incompanies in the cold dennel work perification in the cold dennel work perification in the cold dennel work of the cold dennel work of the cold dennel de	Monitors tanks, projects or propagation in the frequential littles independently, with this list and fine supervision, fullows drawingtons anian licens is the frequently suddiging of work as coquented.	Sticks skeedy to just routine; pelectant to take on additional to take on additional desires as supplied, macks stickento in executating projects; follow through on added inputs is glow and adams in see the continue of the property in the property is a property to the p	Sensetimes thous not passive manufacturing the requirements, own which discussed; requirements, products products on the projects products of the projects during the same began through on quiton lesson in a during factories to exame unpulse in the factories of the projects of the proje	The state of the s

Communications of the second on the second of the second of the second second of the s

3

Significantly Above Expensions	Above Expectations	Successibility Meets Expressions	Partfully Ideas Expectations	Expectations	Applicable
Demonstrates executed earlier resulting and conductation with continuous to the cont	Occurrentines cumpathy and understanding sovered seatments, internal discoverability services conspicto and accounts of constitution and accounts of constitution and accounts of constitution and accounts of constitution accounts of the constitution of accidentation of the constitution of accidentation of the constitution of	Demonstrator respondent respondent acceptance somethis acceptance somethis respondent acceptance somethis respondent acceptance somethis acceptance accept	complete ar accounte for first time; constimatly fails to follow up an propional compinies	sequence received to the control of	

Communical Applications or Logar play played Experiences is subscient, places identify cross for improvement of Particular Masses. Experiences or Logar play played Experiences is subscient.

Significantly Above Expeciations	Expectations	Successfully Mesta Expectations	Partially Mosts Expectations	Boes Not Meet Expentations	Net Applicable
sppoistnance or more control of the	Acceptable # of Acceptable # of Adamdance while; Adamdance foliny guidadiance; rately advanta form work; seldent fact if a all; generated at arectangs and approximate arectangs and approximate area.	Acceptable of effective property of the control of	Benerolard of absenced accomplate within Astendamor Policy guidellines; late authoris exercis to make the complete courses to the partness; to the partness of t	Expects y of absorption control of the control of t	

Commental Explanations
Thereadly shows Experiations of Days Hot Meet Experiations is substited, please belenify cross for improvenient

Significantly Above Expectations	(Above Expectations	Successfully Mans Expectedons	Partially Moois Expecuations	Experiences	Applicable
tong antiquing opposes tong antiquing opposes to contract and contract	bisheciae positive work echnicastic with separatures and convocastic to accompility gentle exclusive and suppose chiese as requested with anihustopy	Stantania effective work schriomidg with supervisor and consecure to seconopid to general section and topports section and topports others as requested	Sometimes shows relations of relation in working with supervisors and/or townshop	Date not work well with others to secondaries and mention for working with supervisor or covercious; has been discriplined by behavior of behavior of the supervisor of the su	

Communical Explanations or Docs West Expectations is submind, please telentify arous for large encount

Significantly Above Expectations	Above Expectations	Mocis Expenientions	Partially Meets Expectations	Done Not Meet Expectations	Application
Domonstration is very bigh level of teachild by the bigh level of teachild by the best of the best of the best of the best of the level of the best of the level of the best o	Destination and stressiste and securities and securities and securities and securities about all securities and the securities and the securities are others extigite, grantly, early, extends at lentation, calington on disability	Displays ability to be become a segment of the with 18 mountain of the workforce will public segmenting of secinity of the second of secon	Neode-assistance or colorates in manufacturenting how in Interact opproprietaly with members at the workplace and problem and problem and problem and problem and problem and problem origin, guarden, agus, access origin, guarden, access origin, ac	Fairt about of starsdaments for resembling starsdaments and respected in the starsdament of the starsdament	

Communicate Explanations If Particle Moots Emphabilities or Even Not ideal Expectations is selected, plants identify or cas for improvement

Section 2: PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES AND CRITERIA FOR SUPERVISORS AND MANAGERS

Fill out this portion of the firm only if the employer's responsibilities include supervising or managing people

Significantly About Expeciations	Dependent	Successfully Meets Expectations	Partially Meets Expectations	Does New Mean Expensions	Applicable
Decs estage in on including and constraint of antice and in part of the standard of the of the st	Siels and communicates high standards of performance; throubes employees; throubes employees; throubes employees; throubes employees; employees employees;	Solvanu storty distormentation distormentation particulation proper testions proper testions proper testions proper testions proper testions proper testion	Needs to rece chearly establish performance on the jub busing and conduing; discense in the performance of the first performance from the performance conduing; discenses the performance incomes and performance incomes.	Fails to indequently brain our complete brain our complete provides an adequately provides on adequately provides an adequately provides an adequately provides an authorizing result amplemental provides our material expression medical fails to produce to consultating for produces of scales to consultation and an adequate to consultation and adequate to	

Communitality describing the Community of Does Had bland Expectations is referred, please identify assess for improvement

Significantly Above Expectations	Exposintions	Suscenditly Nices Expectations	Parisity Month Expectations	Does Not Meet Expediations	Applicable
disceptionally good on planethy seed on seem the planethy seed on seed the seed of t	Fully plane & signification works' projects; resourceful in managing the monkiesed; monkiesed work for actif and employees to must organizational goals.	Sufficiently plans duct deponizes versioprojecta; side to manage en amenal workload when neguited; when neguited; ich suff and shapfloyens to most organizational goale	Scientifield does not plan and upanion work workfarejesst adsputielly fitte behind in workford, notice	Often fails to plan other fapotatist work on low stocking that and other works works on low stocking that and other works regularly works to complete work profit to complete work work work to complete to comple	

Consuments optimistions or Does Not ideal Experiments is selected planne ideally to not for improvement

Significantly Above Expectations	Above Expectations	Successfully Ments Expectalisms	Ments Expectations	Does Not Most Expectations	Applicable
the of house grant in the control of	Articul likes goals, objectives and supermitted, is able to deligate work to imprise absoluted in wellingly actives organizational objectives.	Clearly customations guals, adjustives and expertations to trace organizational objectives are subordinalist to solitors devoted was an achieve or arganizational objectives	Alecals to hotter commentum goals, objections for two Rocks subselfants terrel to resist direction; ments to describe work more editorively	Lacks goods, objectives and expectations for the system with any for does not attitudely consumerations from; does not defensive work officiality of participation garticipation	

Communicity plants in a communication of Doze that ident Expectations is unharmly plants intentify a naw for improvement.

Date for follow up of any	Arons for In	tes we want	
Their a cord advise to this dearest	TALL AND A SECTION ASSESSMENT	ikan enimmi.	

Suction 11 (17) The Property of the Property of the State of the State

1. Gönl/Addion Stept

2 Goodaction Steps

3 Gonlikerine Stept

Date for felters up of Development Acting Plas	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Section 4: SIGNATURUS AND CONTRICTS	* F
I have reviewed this evaluation and it has been discussed with me is evaluation and that my suswer will be extended to this review	padentiand that I may enswer all or very post of this
Amployen's Signatures	
Sales:	Outo
net o return the copy of the publication and while to add the comment berr rand my postessance evaluation and while to add the comment of the return the copy of the publication with adv eventuals by	nodinative eth at bedacked to the evolution of the control will be actually a control with the control with

Salary Schedule A Effective 10/03/2020 2% Increase

Salary			F)				20.0							
Plan	Grade		Step 1		Step 2	Step 2 Step 3					Step 5		Step 6	Step 7
SF	11						i							
	hourly	\$	21.60	\$	22.50	\$	23.53	\$	24.61	S	25.77	\$	26.28	\$ 26.81
	biwkly	\$	1,728.26	\$	1,800.25	\$	1,882,77		1,969.00	\$	2,061.35	-	2,102.59	\$ 2,144.64
28	annually	\$	44,934.73	\$	46,806.54	\$	48,952.02		51,193.91					\$ 55,760.65
	v2		*							•	:		0.1507.100	4.0011.00:00
SF	12													
	hourly	\$	24.18	\$	25.18	\$	26.34	\$	27.53	\$	28.84	\$	29.40	\$ 29,99
	biwkly	\$	1,934.30				2,107.27	\$	2,202.77	\$	2,307,28		2,352.33	\$ 2,399,37
	annually	\$	50,291.71	\$	52,376.46	\$	54,789.15	\$		-	59,989,32	•	61,160.52	\$ 62,383,73
SF	13				6								:	2 8
	hourly	\$	24.61	\$	25.77	\$	26.96	\$	28.23	\$	29.54	œ	30.13	\$ 30.73
	blwkly	\$	1.969.00	\$	2,061.35		2,156.91		2,258.13		•		2,410.35	
	annually	\$		•								•	62,669.20	\$ 2,458.56 \$63,922.58
F.					i :								FC]	4 F
SF	14				0 20	÷							20 mg	
	hourly	\$	26.96	\$	28.23	\$	29.54	\$	31.06	\$	32.56	\$	33,21	\$ 33.87
	blwkly	\$	2,156.91	\$	2,258.09	\$	2,363.09	\$	2,485.09	\$	2,604.55	\$	2,656,65	
	ennually	\$	56,079.55	\$	58,710.42	\$	61,440,26	\$	64,612.45	\$	67,718.37	\$	69,072.96	
SF	. 17						a s							
	hourly	\$	35.67	\$	37.19	\$	38.90	\$	40.76	2	42.59	¢	43.44	\$ 44,31
	blwkly	\$	2,854.00	\$	2,975,51	\$		\$	3,260.47	\$	3,406.80		3,474,92	
	annually	\$	74,203,88	\$	77,363,16	\$	80,907.14	-	84,772.11	т.		-		\$ 3,544.42 \$ 92,154.92
							•					-		

Salary Schedule A Effective 10/02/2021 1.5% Increase

Salar	У																		
Plan	Grade		Step 1		Step 2		Step 3	2	Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
SF	11																		
	hourty	\$	21.93	4	22.84	\$	23.89	្ន	24.98	\$	26,15	\$	26,68	\$	27,21	\$	27,75	s	28.31
73.1 ¹⁰ .	biwkiy	\$	1,754.18	.\$	1,827.26	\$	1,911.01	\$						\$	2.176.81	\$	2,220.35	s	
****	annually	\$	45,608.75	4	47,508.64	\$	49,686.30	\$	51,961.81	\$	54,398.91	\$	55,487.31	\$	56,597.06	\$	57,729.00	-	58,883.58
SF	12	:																	,
	hourly	\$	24.54	. \$	25.56	\$	26.74	- \$	27.95	\$	29.27	\$	29.85	\$	30.44	\$	31.05	¢	31.67
	biwkly	\$	1,963.31	\$	2,044.70						2.341.89	\$	2.387.61						2,533.75
	annually	\$	61,046.08	3	53,162.10	\$	55,610.99	\$	58,131.19	\$	60,889.16	\$	62,077.93	\$	63,319.49	¨\$	64,585.89		
SF =	13					à			:		**					- 1			
	hourly	\$	24,98	\$	26.16	\$	27.37	\$	28.65	· \$	29.98	æ	30.58	¢	31.19	•	31.82	æ	32.45
	biwkly	\$								\$	2.398.53							•	2,596.26
	annually	\$	51,961.81	\$	54,398.91	\$	56,920.74	\$	59,691.95	\$	62,361.86	\$	63,609.24	\$	64,881,42	\$	66,179.05		
SF	14										200					2			
-	hourly	\$	27.37	\$	28.65	\$	29.98	\$	31.53	\$	33.05	\$	33.71	\$	34.38	\$	35.07	e	35.77
	blwkly	\$								\$	2.643.62	- \$	2,696,50	\$	2.750.43	2	2,805.44	4	2 884 55
300 25	annually	\$	56,920.74	\$	59,591.08	\$	62,361.86	\$	65,581,63	\$	68,734.14	\$	70,109.06	\$	71,511.24	\$	72,941.46		
SF	. 15																i		
	hourly	\$	29.98	\$	31.39	\$	32.85	\$	34,54	\$	36,20	\$	36.93	\$	37.67	\$	38.42	\$	39.19
	blwkly	\$	2,398.53	\$	2,511.02	\$	2,627.79	\$					2,954,23	Š	3,013.31	-	3,073.68	-	3,135,05
	annually	\$	62,361.86	\$	65,286.64	\$	68,322.46	\$	71,847,90	\$	75,303.79	\$	76,809.86	\$	78,346.06	\$	79,912.98	-	
SF	17																		
	hourly	\$	36,21	\$	37.75	\$	39,48	\$	41,37	\$	43,22	3	44,09	\$	44 97	\$	45.87	¢	46.79
	blwkdy	.\$	2,896.81	\$	3,020.14	\$	3,158,49	\$	3,309.37	\$	3,457,90	\$	3.527.05		3,597.59				
1,4	annually	\$	75,316.93	\$	78,523.61	\$	82,120.74	\$	86,043.69	\$	89,905.50	\$	91,703.18	\$	93,537.24	\$	95,407.99		4,11 141-4-4

Salary Schedule A Effective 10/01/2022 2% Increase

	Salary	,			•											:				
	-	Grade		Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
	SF	11														. *				2 R
ı		hourly	\$	22.37	9	\$ 23.30	4	24.37	4	25.48	9	198.88	d	: 97 94		27.75	æ	28.31	•	00.00
		biwkly				1,863.80		1,949.23								2,220.35	•	2,264.75	•	
			\$				9	50,680.02	\$	53,001.05	\$	55,486.89	\$	56,597.06				58,883.58		
	SF =	12												6						
		hourly	\$	25.03	\$	26.07	8	27.27	S	28.51	\$	29.86	\$: 30.44	\$	31,05	\$	31.67	's	32.31
		blwkly	\$																	2,584.43
		annually	\$	52,067.00	\$	54,225.34	\$	56,723.21	\$	59,293.82	\$	62,106.94	\$	63,319.49	, \$	64,585.88	\$	65,877.60	\$	67,195.16
6	3F	13				6 (1)								- N		:				
		hourly	\$	25.48	\$	26.68	\$	27.91	. \$	29.22	\$	30,58	\$	31.19	\$	31,82	\$	32,45	\$	33.10
		biwkly	\$	2,038.50	\$	2,134.11	.\$	2,233.04	\$	2,337.84	\$	2,446.50	\$	2,495.44	-\$	2.545.35	3	2.596.26	\$	2,648.18
		annually	\$	53,001.05	\$	55,486.89	\$	58,059.15	\$	60,783.78	\$	63,609.10	\$	64,881.42	\$	66,179.05	\$	67,502,63	\$	68,852.68
٤	s SF	14.	:	: 7				- F		- 5								Y		
		hourty	\$	27.91	\$	29.22	\$	30.58	\$	32,16	\$	33.71	\$	34,38	\$	35.07	. 3	35.77	g,	36.48
	:	biwkiy	\$	2,233.04	\$	2,337.80	\$	2,446.50	\$	2,572.82	\$	2,696.49	\$	2.750.43	\$	2.805.44	\$	2,861.55		
		annually	\$	58,059.15	\$	60,782.90	\$	63,609.10	\$	66,893.26	\$	70,108.82	\$	71,511.24	\$	72,941.46	\$	74,400.29	\$	75,888.30
8	}F	15												#1						
		hourty	\$	30.58	\$	32.02	\$	33.50	\$	35,23	\$	36,93	\$	37.67	\$	38.42	\$	39,19	\$	39.97
		blwkly	\$	2,446.50	\$	2,561.25	\$	2,680.34	\$	2,818.65	\$	2,954.23	\$	3,013.31	\$	3,073.58	. \$	3,135.05	\$	3.197.75
		annually	\$	63,609.10	\$	66,592,37	\$	69,688.91	\$	73,284.86	\$	76,809,86	\$	78,346.06	\$	79,912.98	\$	81,511.24	\$	83,141.47
9	F	17										1		8 -	. 1					257
						38,51			\$	42.19	.\$	44.09	\$	44.97	\$	45.87	\$	46.79	\$	47.72
		blwkly	\$	2,954.74	\$	3,080.54	\$	3,221.66	\$	3,375.56	\$	3,527.06	\$	3,597.59	\$	3,669,54	\$	3,742,93	S	3.817.79
				76,823.27	\$	80,094.08	\$	83,763.16	\$	87,764.56	\$	91,703.61	\$	93,537.24	\$	95,407.99	\$	97,316.15	\$	99,262.47